


(2) Consideration of award for two walking-floor unloader
transfer trailers to Pinnacle Trailer Sales, Inc.

(C) Consideration of lease renewals at the Business Development
Center — Tommy Jenkins, Director, Macon County Economic
Development Commission
(1) AG1, LLC
(2) Macon County Board of Education (STEM)

(3) TECO SSL, Inc.
(4) Waterwheel Manufacturing, Inc,

(D)Schedule public hearing for 6 p.m. on March 14, 2023
regarding amendment(s) to the Watershed Protection Ordinance
— Planning Director Joe Allen

(E) Resolution Authorizing Execution of Opioid Settlements —
County Manager Derek Roland and County Attorney Eric
Ridenour

(F) Sale of surplus property (Lot #307 Wildflower) to Anakeesta —
County Manager Derek Roland, Finance Director Lori Carpenter
and County Attorney Eric Ridenour

12.Consent Agenda - Attachment #12
All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

(A) Minutes of the January 10, 2023 regular meeting

(B) Budget Amendments #153-157

(C) Tax releases for the month of January in the amount of $65.10
(D)Audit contract for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023

(E) Monthly ad valorem tax collection report - no action necessary

13.Appointments

(A) Planning Board (2 seats)

(B) Economic Development Commission (2 seats)

(C) Southwestern Commission Area Agency on Aging Regional
Advisory Council (3 seats and 3 alternates)

(D) 2023 Board of Equalization and Review (5 seats)

(E) ETJ representative on the Town of Franklin Planning Board (1
seat)

14 Closed session as allowed under NCGS (if necessary)

15.Adjourn/Recess












I am requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve the attached
contracts and authorize the County Manager to execute the same so that this
work may proceed.

Note: This request is made subject to approval of a Budget Amendment
to transfer $113,450.00 from Retained Assets (Fund Balance) in the
Enterprise Fund to Landfill Capital Improvements.

(2) Consideration of award for two walking-floor unloader transfer
trailers to Pinnacle Trailer Sales, Inc.

Per Mr. Stahl, Macon County issued a Request for Bids (No. 604712-03) to
purchase two (2) walking-floor transfer trailers for the Solid Waste
Department on January 25, 2023. Two bids were received and opened at
4:00 p.m. on February 1, 2023. A bid tabulation sheet is enclosed in the
packet. I recommend, and ask that the Board of Commissioners approve, the
purchase of the trailers and delivery to the Macon County landfill from
Pinnacle Trailer Sales, Inc. in the amount of $193,200.00.

[1(C). Consideration of lease renewals at the Business Development Center

— Tommy Jenkins, Director, Macon County Economic Development
Commission

(1)AGI, LLC — Mr. Jenkins will be seeking renewal of the lease with
AGI, LLC for Unit A in the Business Development Center as shown
in Exhibit A to the lease agreement, which has a one-year term of
February 14, 2023 to February 13, 2024 with a monthly rent of
$1,840. A copy of a resolution declaring the property as surplus and
approving the one-year lease is enclosed in the packet along with the
lease agreement.

(2)Macon County Board of Education — Mr. Jenkins will be seeking
renewal of the lease with the Macon County Board of Education with
regard to Units D and E in the Business Development Center. The
lease is also for one year, commencing on February 14, 2023, and the
lease notes that the agreement stipulates the use of the space for
Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM)
educational purposes. A copy of this lease will also be included in the
packet, and it would be appropriate for the board to declare this space
as surplus.




(3)TECO SSL, Inc. -- Mr. Jenkins will be seeking renewal of the lease
with TECO SSL, Inc. for Unit B in the Business Development Center
as shown in Exhibit A to the lease agreement, which has a one-year
term of February 14, 2023 to February 13, 2024 with a monthly rent
of $1,218. A copy of a resolution declaring the property as surplus and
approving the one-year lease is enclosed in the packet along with the
lease agreement.

(4) Waterwheel Manufacturing, Inc. — Mr. Jenkins will be secking
renewal of the lease with Waterwheel Manufacturing, Inc., for Unit C
in the Business Development Center as shown in Exhibit A to the
lease agreement, which has a one-year term of February 14, 2023 to
February 13, 2024 with a monthly rent of $212. A copy of a resolution
declaring the property as surplus and approving the one-year lease is
enclosed in the packet along with the lease agreement.

I (D) — Per Planning Director Joe Allen, the Macon County Planning Board
is proposing a minor change to the Water Supply Watershed Protection
Ordinance.  The proposed change is to Section 156.32(C) Special
Nonresidential Intensity Allocations (SNIA). This change would allow
SNIAs to be approved by the Watershed Administrator instead of the
Planning Board. A copy of the relevant section of the ordinance (156.32)
will be enclosed with the packet (pages 14-16 of the ordinance), and Mr.
Allen will be asking the board to schedule a public hearing for the March
14" regular meeting in order to receive public comment on the proposed
revision.

I1(E) — In regard to the opioid settlement, there are a number of documents
included in the packet for your review. The first is a letter from North
Carolina Attorney General Josh Stein, the second is a sample resolution that
authorizes execution of the opioid settlements and the third is a
"Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds From Additional
Settlements of Opioid Litigation.” Mr. Roland and Mr. Ridenour can provide
greater insight into this issue at the meeting. However, the board must
approve a resolution to join the settlements and doing so authorizes county
staff to sign the settlement paperwork, and counties have until April 18" to
do so.

11(F) — As to the proposed sale of surplus property, enclosed with the packet
are (1) a settlement statement and (2) a special warranty deed prepared by
the County Attorney in relation to the county’s bid process for Lot #307




located in the Wildflower Subdivision. The proposed buyer, Anakeesta
Properties, LLC of Sylva, NC, has offered $5,000 for the 1.07-acre parcel
and has paid a bid deposit of $250. If the board approves the sale, the
Chairman and County Manager will need to sign the settlement statement
and the deed and Anakecsta will owe the county $4,776 (which includes a
$25 recording fee). Mr. Roland, Mrs. Carpenter and Mr. Ridenour can
provide additional details at the meeting,.










MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT #

DEPARTMENT Soil & Water Conservation

EXPLANATION Appropriate funds from the NCASWCD and donations from the public for an event recognizing H&H Farms

as winner of the NC Association of Sail and Water Conservation Districts' Outstanding Conservation Farm

Family award.

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
113850] 445808|DONATIONS - SOIL & WATER CONSERVATION 9,000
114940( 556025|EVENTS 9,000

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD Doug Johnson

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER Loy M. Carpesntes

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 2/21/2023 meeting

APPROVED & ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK





































EZ0T/€/T SO 1S ZZYTT 03 3n0 padueyd aqg ued sjpaym 12U1 POYUISA 4
"SUOLBIIIDAS Ul pamo||e JaJNiDejUBL 21Uy
£20Z/€/7 SO "suonesynads awes o) HInQ $100]4 Buiyjem yYiiay pue sioopy Supjjem 02[[BH PRLIAA ,

_ SYIUOW t-£ SI9IM t-€ ] auwy pes
00°89S'L6TS 00°00Z‘€6TS lelol
@ 00'0S6°TS| @ 00'005°TS SEAET
4] 00'7€8'96S] 7@ 00'00T'S6S| {yoe3) soud pig
A SCTdTT wx /A SPTHTT s[Eaym
A |enue A [ELIVETY WalsAs die|
A Yitay *\ o3feH d00]4
A wapue] A wapuej Xy
A aply 3undg A apty Suudg uolsuadsng
A 193} 219n2 07T A 1934 219n2 07T Avdede)
A 00T A 00T SETETY
A «COT A wC0T Yipim
A 1004 -8t A 1004 -8t Y18ua
A SISauo9 A Slsaua0 [2POW
U “Jajiea] 21Sepn JBIAl U ‘sajes 1ajled] BPRUUIY uonedyads
E# Joppig # 4oppig T # ioppig

wddoo:y ‘€207 ‘T Aenagad :o1eq 3uuado pig

Si9[ied] YseJL Japeojun wnuiwn|y z

€0-CTL109 "ON g4y 215eM PpIjoS Aluno) uodepw
L33HS ATTVL AId

€202 ‘ST Aenuer :a1eq anss|




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

RESOLUTION OF THE MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
DECLARING PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND APPROVING A ONE YEAR LEASE
OF THE SAME BY MACON COUNTY TO AG1, LLC.

THAT WHEREAS, Macon County owns certain real property being described in the Lease
to AG1, LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Macon County does not presently have a use for the same; and

WHEREAS, Macon County desires to declare the same to be surplus and authorize the entry
ofthe Lease to AGI, LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached
hereto, for the period of one year from February 14, 2023; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-272, Macon County is authorized to enter
into the Lease to AG1, LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is
attached hereto, upon the passing of a Resolution authorizing the same.

NOW THEREFORE, upon Motion of Commissioner \
seconded by Commissioner , and duly approved, be it
hereby resolved by the Macon County Board of County Commissioners as follows:

RESOLVED, that Macon County will not have a need for the real property described in the
Lease to AG1, LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference for and during the term of such lease and does hereby declare
the same to be surplus property; and

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby authorize the entry into the Lease to AGI,
LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference, for the period of one year from February 14, 2023, through
February 13, 2024; and

RESOLVED, that Derek Roland, Macon County Manager, is hereby authorized and directed
to fill in any blanks upon the same and execute said Lease to AGI,LLC., aNorth Carolina Limited
Liability Company, on behalf of Macon County.

Adopted at the February 14, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners.



Paul Higdon, Chairman, Macon County Board of
County Commissioners

ATTEST:

Derek Roland, Macon County Manager
and Clerk to the Board

( Official Seal )



NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY

LEASE TO AG1, LLC,
A NORTH CAROLINA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY,
FROM MACON COUNTY

This lease is made this 14th day of February,2023, by and between MACON COUNTY,
a body corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws of the State of North
Carolina, hereinafter called the "Lessor," and AGI, LLC, a North Carolina Limited Liability
Company, hereinafter called the "Tenant."

WITNESSETH:

That, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Landiord does hereby
demise and let and the Tenant does hereby rent and hire from the Landlord, those certain
premises (hereinafier referred to as the “Premises™) located at the Macon County Business
Development Center and more particularly shown in yellow and blue on Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein as limited hereinafter.

(1) Premises. Lessor leases unto the Tenant, and the Tenant accepts upon the full terms and
conditions of this lease, that certain space located in the Macon County Business Development
Center at the Macon County Industrial Park near Franklin, NC, as specifically shown in yellow
and blue on the drawing of the floor plan of the Business Development Center which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference as limited hereinafier. The space
designated on the drawing attached hereto as Exhibit A in the color yellow is leased unto the
Tenant for Tenant's exclusive use. The spaces outlined in blue and designated on the drawing as
the Men's and Women's Restrooms, Lounge, Janitor's Closet, Corridors, Loading Dock, Halls
and Waiting Room may be used by Tenant for Tenant's non-exclusive use in common with any
other tenants in the Business Development Center and Lessor, together with such portion of the
premises as is reasonably necessary for access, parking and use of the leased premises.

(2) Term. Subject to the terms below, this lease shall commence February 14, 2023, and shall
continue for a term expiring February 13, 2024. THAT NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING
TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, LESSOR MAY END THIS LEASE UPON 30
DAYS NOTICE TO TENANT WITHOUT LEGAL CONSEQUENCE.

(3) Rent. The Macon County Business Development Center is owned by Macon County as a
small business incubator to promote economic development and the growth of jobs in Macon
County. The lease of the premises to Tenant is in furtherance of that policy. The monthly rent for
the aforementioned space is $1,840.00 per month. Rent is due and payable on the Ist day of
each month in advance.



(4)

(3)

(6)

)

(%)

Use of Premises. The leased premises shall only be used by Tenant for producing, packaging,
and distributing lawful Industrial Hemp, lawful wholesale flower material and lawful CBD oil,
No growing of plants shall occur upon the leased premises. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained herein, Tenant must at all times comply with all Federal, State and Local
laws, statutes regulations and rules concerning the growth, manufacture, packaging and
distribution of lawful Industrial Hemp and related products, including, but not limited to lawful
CBD oil. Nothing contained in this Lease shall be construed to authorize Tenant to conduct any
illegal activities whatsoever upon the leased premises and all illegal activities may not occur
upon the leased premises and are hereby expressly prohibited by the terms of this Lease.

No Assignment. This lease shall not be assigned by Tenant nor shall Tenant sublet the leased
premises or any portion thereof.

Tenant's Responsibilities for Repairs. Tenant agrees to accept the premises in their present
condition and to maintain the interior components of the portion of the premises leased to Tenant
in a good state of repair during the term of this lease. Interior components shall include the
floors, walls, ceilings, electrical components, lighting fixtures, plumbing, and plumbing fixtures.
Tenant shall be responsible for interior repairs in the portions of the premises leased to it
exclusively and in common with other tenants. If other space in the Center is leased to existing
or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by which all tenants using the
common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. At termination, Tenant shall surrender
the premises to the Lessor in as good condition as they now are, except for ordinary wear and
tear incident to the use of the premises.

Lessor's Responsibilities for Repairs. Lessor shall make all necessary repairs to the exterior ofthe
premises, including the parking and driveway areas, exterior walls, windows, and roof, In the
event the premises or any part thercof are substantially damaged by fire or other casualty to the
extent that necessary repairs will exceed twenty percent of the value of the building, the parties
agree that Lessor shall have no obligation to make the repairs and Lessor may elect to either
make the necessary repairs or to terminate the lease.

Maintenance. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all routine and recurring maintenance,
including cleaning, trash removal and painting of the interior portion of the premises leased to it
exclusively and the portion of the premises leased to is as common area with other tenants. If
other space is leased to existing or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by
which all tenants using the common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. Lessor
shatl continue to maintain the exterior premises including the parking areas, driveways, and
landscaping/mowing.

(9) Abatement of Nuisances and Appearance. Tenant shall com ly with all laws, rules, and
7 P

regulations of any governmental jurisdiction applicable to the leased premises and shall take all
Ineasures necessary Lo prevent or abate nuisances or other grievances arising out of the manner
of the occupancy of the premises for its business purposes. Tenant shall further maintain the
appearance of the premises in manner that is aesthetically pleasing and consistent with other
business users in the neighborhood and shall not accumulate trash or debris nor display

merchandise on the premises.
2



(10)  Utilities. Lessee shall be responsible for furnishing its utilities for Unit D shown on Exhibit
A attached hereto. Lessor will provide utilities for the balance of the leased premises.

(11} Alterations. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the
premises without first obtaining written permission from the Lessor and any such alterations,
additions or improvements which are permitted shall inure to the benefit of the Lessor upon
expiration of the lease and surrender of the premises by the Tenant.

(12)  Indemnification. Tenant shall indemnify Lessor and hold it harmless from and against any
and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expense in connection with the loss of life,
personal injury or damage to property occurring in or about, or arising out of, the leased
premises, or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission of Tenant, its agents, licensees,
concessionaires, customers or employees. In the event Lessor shall be made a party to any
litigation, commenced by or against Tenant, its agents, licensees, concessionaires, customers, or
employees, then Tenant shall protect and hold Lessor harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses
and reasonable attorneys’ fees included or paid by Lessor in connection with such litigation.

(13)  Environmental Matters. With respect to any pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substance or material defined as such in, or for purposes of, all
applicable environmental laws, rules, regulations and ordinances now or hereafter in effect
("Environmental Laws"), including without limitation, any waste constituents coming within the
definition or list of hazardous substances in 40 C.F.R. §§ 261.1 through 261.33 ("Hazardous
Material"), the Tenant represents, warrants and covenants that it will indemnify and hold Lessor
harmless from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, interest, deficiencies,
fines, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, disbursements, and costs of investigation and
clean-up, including without limitation, claims, suits, and proceedings by federal, state, or local
government authorities with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of (1) the presence on or
under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission, discharging or releasing
from, the property of any Hazardous Material, if such occurs during the term of the lease, (ii)
any other environmental pollution, including without limitation, any contaminant, waste, irritant
or pollutant, discharged into or otherwise contained in the environment at or adjacent to the
property if such occurs during the term of the lease, (iii) non-compliance relating to the Tenant's
business or the property with any Environmental Law or any other federal, state or local statute,
law, ordinance, rule, regulation, order or decree, or (iv) the taccuracy, misrepresentation or
violation or default of or under any matter set forth in this section unless any such loss, liability,
damage, injury or the like is directly caused by negligent acts of the Lessor. In addition, the
Tenant shall at all times keep on file with the Macon County Fire Marshall a list of any of the
materials, substances, or chemicals described in this paragraph and stored or kept on the leased
premises.

(14} Incidents of Defaudt. Each and every term of this lease is a material part of this lease and
continuation of the lease is conditioned on the parties' adherence to its terms. The breach or
threatened breach of any of the lease terms by the Tenant shall be deemed an incident of default,
A declaration of insolvency or the filing of a bankruptcy by the Tenant shall also be deemed an

incident of default. In the event Tenant defaults as defined in paragraph, Lessor may declare the
3



lease terminated and retake possession of the premises upon allowing Tenant a reasonable time
to vacate the premises and remove its personal property from the premises.

In testimony whereof, the parties have signed this lease on the date first written above in
duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties.

COUNTY OF MACON

By:

Macon County Manager

AGI1, LLC, aNorth Carolina
Limited Liability Company

By:
President







STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

LEASE FROM MACON COUNTY
to
MACON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

This lease is made this ___ day of February 2023, by and between MACON COUNTY, a
body corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina,
hereinafter called the "Lessor,” and MACON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, hereinafter
called the "Tenant."

WITNESSETH:

That, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Lessor does hereby
demise and let and the Tenant does hereby rent and hire from the Lessor, those certain premises
(hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”) known as Units D and E, Macon County Business
Development Center, 185 Industrial Park Rd, Franklin, NC 28734 and more particularly depicted
on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference.

(1) Premises. Lessor leases unto the Tenant, and the Tenant accepts upon the full terms and
conditions of this lease, that certain space known as Units D and E, Macon County Business
Development Center located at the Macon County Industrial Park, 185 Industrial Park Rd,
Franklin, NC, 28734, said units being more particularly highlighted on the attached drawing of the
floor plan of the Business Development Center attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by
reference. Tenant shall further have the non-exclusive right to use, along with the rights of other
tenants within the Development Center, those certain common areas as the Men's and Women's
Restrooms, Lounge, Janitor's Closet, Corridors, Loading Dock, Halls and Waiting Room, the same
being highlighted in blue on the attached Exhibit A, together with such portion of the premises as
is reasonably necessary for access, parking and use of the leased premises.

(2) Term. Subject to the terms below, this lease shall commence February 14th, 2023, and shall
continue for a period of one (1) year., NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE
CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, LESSOR, AT LESSOR’S SOLE DISCRETION, MAY
TERMINATE THIS LEASE UPON 30 DAYS NOTICE TO TENANT WITHOUT LEGAL
CONSEQUENCE.

(3) Rent. The Macon County Business Development Center is owned by Macon County as a
small business incubator to promote economic development and the growth of jobs in Macon
County. The lease of the premises to Tenant is in furtherance of that policy given that the Macon
County Board of Education does hereby agree to and shall use the leased premises for Science,
Technology, Engineering and Mathematics, hereinafter “STEM” educational purpose during the
term of this Lease. The parties hereto recognize and agree that the STEM program helps equip



students in problem solving and education to ready students to be gainfully employed and thereby
promotes economic development and the growth of jobs in Macon County. The payment of
monthly rent for the aforementioned space is waived by the County and the agreement of the
Macon County Board of Education to use the lease premises only for STEM educational purposes
during the term of the Lease shall constitute the consideration for this Lease

(4) Use of Premises. The leased premises shall only be used by Tenant for Macon County
STEM educational purposes. Further, there shall be no use of the leased premises by students
participating in the STEM educational program without appropriate and adequate adult Macon
County School Personnel being present upon the leased premises at all times and appropriately
supervising the students participating in the STEM educational program. The students
participating in the STEM educational program shall at no time interfere with the activities and
business of other tenants in the Business Development Center.

(3) No Assignment. This lease shall not be assigned by Tenant nor shall Tenant sublet the
leased premises or any portion thereof.

(6) Tenant's Responsibilities for Repairs. Tenant agrees to accept the premises in their present
condition and to maintain the interior components of the portion of the premises leased to Tenant
in a good state of repair during the term of this lease. Interior components shall include the floors,
walls, ceilings, electrical components, lighting fixtures, plumbing and plumbing fixtures. Tenant
shall be responsible for interior repairs in the portions of the premises leased to it exclusively and
in common with other tenants. If other space in the Center is leased to existing or additional
tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by which all tenants using the common area shall
share in the cost of such maintenance. At termination, Tenant shall surrender the premises to the
Lessor in as good condition as they now are, except for ordinary wear and tear incident to the use
of the premises. Lessor makes no warranty whatsoever conceming the adequacy of the leased
premises for use by Tenant for STEM educational purposes.

(7) Lessor's Responsibilities for Repairs. Lessor shall make all necessary repairs to the exterior
of the premises, including the parking and driveway areas, exterior walls, windows and roof. In
the event the premises or any part thereof are substantially damaged by fire or other casualty to the
extent that necessary repairs will exceed twenty percent of the value of the building, the parties
agree that Lessor shall have no obligation to make the repairs and Lessor may elect to either make
the necessary repairs or to terminate the lease.

(8) Maintenance. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all routine and recurring maintenance,
including cleaning, trash removal and painting of the interior portion of the premises leased to it
exclusively and the portion of the premises leased to is as common area with other tenants. If other
space Is leased to existing or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by which
all tenants using the common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. Lessor shall continue
to maintain the exterior premises including the parking areas, driveways and landscaping/mowing.



(9 Abatement of Nuisances and Appearance. Tenant shall comply with all Taws, rules and
regulations of any governmental jurisdiction applicable to the leased premises and shall take all
measures necessary to prevent or abate nuisances or other grievances arising out of the manner of
the occupancy of the premises for its business purposes. Tenant shall further maintain the
appearance of the premises in manner that is aesthetically pleasing and consistent with other
business users in the neighborhood and shall not accumulate trash or debris nor display
merchandise on the premises.

(10)  Ulilities. Lessee shall be responsible for furnishing its utilities for Unit D and E shown on
Exhibit A attached hereto. Lessor will provide utilities for the balance of the leased premises,

(1) Alterations. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the
premises without first obtaining written permission from the Lessor and any such alterations,
additions or improvements which are permitted shall inure to the benefit of the Lessor upon
expiration of the lease and surrender of the premises by the Tenant.

(12)  Indemnification. Tenant shall indemnify Lessor and hold it harmless from and against any
and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expense in connection with the loss of life, personal
injury or damage to property occurring in or about, or arising out of] the leased premises, or
occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission of Tenant, its agents, licensees,
concessionaires, customers or employees. In the event Lessor shall be made a party to any
litigation, commenced by or against Tenant, its agents, licensees, concessionaires, customers or
employees, then Tenant shall protect and hold Lessor harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses
and reasonable attorneys' fees included or paid by Lessor in connection with such litigation.

(13)  Environmental Matters. With respect to any pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substance or material defined as such in, or for purposes of, all
applicable environmental laws, rules, regulations and ordinances now or hereafter in effect
("Environmental Laws"), including without limitation, any waste constituents coming within the
definition or list of hazardous substances in 40 C.F.R. §§ 261.1 through 261.33 ("Hazardous
Material™), the Tenant represents, warrants and covenants that it will indemnity and hold Lessor
harmless from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, interest, deficiencies,
fines, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, disbursements, and costs of investigation and
clean-up, including without limitation, claims, suits, and proceedings by federal, state, or local
government authorities with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of (1) the presence on or
under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission, discharging or releasing from,
the property of any Hazardous Material, if such occurs during the term of the lease, (ii) any other
environmental pollution, including without limitation, any contaminant, waste, irritant or pollutant,
discharged into or otherwise contained in the environment at or adjacent to the property if such
oceurs during the term of the lease, (iii) non-compliance relating to the Tenant's business or the
property with any Environmental Law or any other federal, state or local statute, Taw, ordinance,
rule, regulation, order or decree, or (iv) the inaccuracy, misrepresentation or violation or default of
or under any matter set forth in this section unless any such loss, liability, damage, injury or the



like is directly caused by negligent acts of the Lessor. In addition, the Tenant shall at all times keep
on file with the Macon County Fire Marshall a list of any of the materials, substances, or chemicals
described in this paragraph and stored or kept on the leased premises.

(14)  Incidents of Defaunir. Each and every term of this lease is a material part of this lease and
continuation of the lease is conditioned on the parties' adherence to its terms. The breach or
threatened breach of any of the lease terms by the Tenant shall be deemed an incident of default.
A declaration of insolvency or the filing of a petition of bankruptcy by the Tenant shall also be
deemed an incident of default. In the event Tenant defaults as defined in this paragraph, Lessor
may declare the lease terminated and retake possession of the premises upon allowing Tenant a
reasonable time to vacate the premises and remove its personal property from the premises.

In testimony whereof, the parties have signed this lease on the date first written above in
duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties,

COUNTY OF MACON

By:

Macon County Manager

Macon County Board of Education

By:




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON |

RESOLUTION OF THE MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DECLARING PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND APPROVING A ONE YEAR LEASE

OF THE SAME BY MACON COUNTY TO TECO SSL INC, A TENNESSEE BUSINESS
CORPORATION.

THAT WHEREAS, Macon County owns certain real property being described in the Lease
to TECO SSL INC., a Tennessee Business Corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Macon County does not presently have a use for the same; and

WHEREAS, Macon County desires to declare the same to be surplus and authorize the entry
of the Lease to TECO SSL INC., a Tennessee Business Corporation, a copy of which is attached
hereto, for the period of one year from February 14, 2023; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-272, Macon County is authorized to enter
into the Lease to TECO SSLINC., a Tennessee Business Corporation, a copy of which is attached
hereto, upon the passing of a Resolution authorizing the same.

NOW THEREFORE, upon Motion of Commissioner ,
seconded by Commissioner , and duly approved, be it
hereby resolved by the Macon County Board of County Commissioners as follows:

RESOLVED, that Macon County will not have a need for the real property described in the
Lease to TECO SSL INC,, a Tennessee Business Corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference for and during the term of such lease and does hereby declare
the same to be surplus property; and

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby authorize the entry into the Lease to TECO
SSLINC., a Tennessee Business Corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference, for the period of one year from February 14, 2023, through the end of
February 13, 2024; and

RESOLVED, that Derek Roland, Macon County Manager, is hereby authorized and directed
to fill in any blanks upon the same and execute said Lease to TECO SSL INC., a Tennessee
Business Corporation, on behalf of Macon County,

Adopted at the February 14, 2023, Regular Meeting of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners.



Paul Higdon, Chairman, Macon County Board of
County Comimissioners

ATTEST:

Derek Roland, Macon County Manager
and Clerk to the Board

( Official Seal )



NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY

LEASE TO TECO SSL INC.,
A TENNESSEE BUSINESS CORPORATION,
FROM MACON COUNTY

This lease is made this 14" day of February, 2023, by and between MACON COUNTY,a
body corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina,
hereinafter called the "Lessor," and TECO SSL INC.. a Tennessee Business Corporation,
hereinafter called the "Tenant."

WITNESSETH:

That, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Landlord does hereby
demise and let and the Tenant does hereby rent and hire from the Landlord, those certain
premises (hereinafter referred to as the “Premises™) located at the Macon County Business
Development Center and more particularly shown in yellow and blue on Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein as limited hereinafter.

(1) Premises. Lessor leases unto the Tenant, and the Tenant accepts upon the full terms and
conditions of this lease, that certain space located in the Macon County Business Development
Center at the Macon County Industrial Park near Franklin, NC, as specifically shown in yellow
and blue on the drawing of the floor plan of the Business Development Center which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference as limited hereinafter. The space
designated on the drawing attached hereto as Exhibit A in the color yellow is leased unto the
Tenant for Tenant’s exclusive use. The spaces outlined in blue and designated on the drawing as
the Men's and Women's Restrooms, Lounge, Janitor's Closet, Corridors, Loading Dock, Halls
and Waiting Room may be used by Tenant for Tenant's non-exclusive use in common with any
other tenants in the Business Development Center and Lessor, together with such portion of the
premises as is reasonably necessary for access, parking and use of the leased premises.

(2) Term. Subject to the terms below, this lease shall commence February 14, 2023, and shall
continue for a term expiring at the end of February 13, 2024. THAT NOTWITHSTANDING
ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, LESSOR MAY END THIS
LEASE UPON 30 DAYS NOTICE TO TENANT WITHOUT LEGAL CONSEQUENCE,

(3) Rent. The Macon County Business Development Center is owned by Macon County as a
small business incubator to promote economic development and the growth of jobs in Macon
County. The lease of the premises to Tenant is in furtherance of that policy. The monthly rent for
the aforementioned space is $1,218.00 per month. Rent is due and payable on the 14th day of
each month in advance.



(4) Use of Premises. The leased premises shall only be used by Tenant for a business that does
Design & Manufacture LED Paint Inspection Lighting Systems for OEM Automotive
Manufacturers such as TESLA, TOYOTA, FORD etc.

(3) No Assignment. This lease shall not be assigned by Tenant nor shall Tenant sublet the leased
premises or any portion thereof.

(6) Tenant's Responsibilities for Repairs. Tenant agrees to accept the premises in their present
condition and to maintain the interior components of the portion of the premises leased to Tenant
in a good state of repair during the term of this lease. Interior components shall include the
floors, walls, ceilings, electrical components, lighting fixtures, plumbing and plumbing fixtures.
Tenant shall be responsible for interior repairs in the portions of the premises leased to it
exclusively and in common with other tenants. If other space in the Center is leased to existing
or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by which all tenants using the
common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. At termination, Tenant shall surrender
the premises to the Lessor in as good condition as they now are, except for ordinary wear and
tear incident to the use of the premises.

(7) Lessor's Responsibilities for Repairs. Lessor shall make all necessary repairs to the exterior of
the premises, including the parking and driveway areas, exterior walls, windows and roof. In the
event the premises or any part thereof are substantially damaged by fire or other casualty to the
extent that necessary repairs will exceed twenty percent of the value of the building, the parties
agree that Lessor shall have no obligation to make the repairs and Lessor may elect to either
make the necessary repairs or to terminate the lease.

(8) Maintenance. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all routine and recurring maintenance,
including cleaning, trash removal and painting of the interior portion of the premises leased to it
exclusively and the portion of the premises leased to is as common area with other tenants. If
other space is leased to existing or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by
which all tenants using the common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. Lessor
shall continue to maintain the exterior premises including the parking areas, driveways and
landscaping/mowing.

(9)Abatement of Nuisances and Appearance. Tenant shall comply with all laws, rules and
regulations of any governmental jurisdiction applicable to the leased premises and shall take all
mMeasures necessary to prevent or abate nuisances or other grievances arising out of the manner
of the occupancy of the premises for its business purposes. Tenant shall further maintain the
appearance of the premises in manner that is aesthetically pleasing and consistent with other
business users in the neighborhood and shall not accumulate wash or debris nor display
merchandise on the premises.

(10) Utilities. Lessee shall be responsible for furnishing its utilities for Unit B shown on Exhibit
A attached hereto. Lessor will provide utilities for the balance of the leased premises.

S8}



(I1)Alterations. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the
premises without first obtaining written permission from the Lessor and any such alterations,
additions or improvements which are permitted shall inure to the benefit of the Lessor upon
expiration of the lease and surrender of the premises by the Tenant.

(12} Indemnification. Tenant shall indemnify Lessor and hold it harmless from and against any
and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expense in connection with the loss of life,
personal injury or damage to property occurring in or about, or arising out of, the leased
premises, or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission of Tenant, its agents, licensees,
concessionaires, customers or employees. In the event Lessor shall be made a party to any
litigation, commenced by or against Tenant, its agents, licensees, concessionaires, customeis or
employees, then Tenant shall protect and hold Lessor harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses
and reasonable attorneys' fees included or paid by Lessor in connection with such litigation.

(13) Environmental Matters. With respect to any pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substance or material defined as such in, or for purposes of, all
applicable environmental laws, rules, regulations and ordinances now or hereafter in effect
("Environmental Laws"), including without limitation, any waste constituents coming within the
definition or list of hazardous substances in 40 C.F.R. §§ 261.1 through 261.33 ("Hazardous
Material™), the Tenant represents, warrants and covenants that it will indemnify and hold Lessor
harmless from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, interest, deficiencies,
fines, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, disbursements, and costs of investigation and
clean-up, including without limitation, claims, suits, and proceedings by federal, state, or local
government authorities with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of (1) the presence on or
under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission, discharging or releasing
from, the property of any Hazardous Material, if such occurs during the term of the lease, (ii)
any other environmental pollution, including without limitation, any contaminant, waste, irritant
or pollutant, discharged into or otherwise contained in the environment at or adjacent to the
property if such occurs during the term of the lease, (iii) non-compliance relating to the Tenant's
business or the property with any Environmental Law or any other federal, state or local statute,
law, ordinance, rule, regulation, order or decree, or (iv) the inaccuracy, misrepresentation or
violation or default of or under any matter set forth in this section unless any such loss, liability,
damage, injury or the like is directly caused by negligent acts of the Lessor. In addition, the
Tenant shall at all times keep on file with the Macon County Fire Marshall a list of any of the
materials, substances, or chemicals described in this paragraph and stored or kept on the leased
premises.

(14) Incidents of Defaull. Each and every term of this lease is a material part of this lease and
continuation of the lease is conditioned on the parties' adherence to its terms. The breach or
threatened breach of any of the lease terms by the Tenant shall be deemed an incident of default,
A declaration of insolvency or the filing of a petition of bankruptcy by the Tenant shall also be
deemed an incident of default. In the event Tenant defaults as defined in this paragraph, Lessor
may declare the lease terminated and retake possession of the premises upon allowing Tenant a
reasonable time (o vacate the premises and remove its personal property from the premises.



(15) E-Verification. Tenant shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the
North Carolina General Statutes. Further, if Tenant utilizes a subcontractor, Tenant shall require
the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General
Statutes.

In testimony whereof, the parties have signed this lease on the date first written above in
duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties.

COUNTY OF MACON

By:

Macon County Manager

TECO SSL INC,
A Tennessee Business Corporation

By:

President






STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

RESOLUTION OF THE MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
DECLARING PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND APPROVING A ONE YEAR LEASE

OF THE SAME BY MACON COUNTY TO WATERWHEEL MANUFACTURING A
NORTH CAROLINA BUSINESS CORPORATION,

— THAT WHEREAS, Macon County owns certain real property being described in the Lease
to Waterwheel Manufacturing, Inc, a North Carolina Business Corporation, a copy of which is
attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Macon County does not presently have a use for the same; and

WHEREAS, Macon County desires to declare the same to be surplus and authorize the entry
of the Lease to WATERWHEEL MANUFACTURING, INC, a copy of which is attached hereto,
for the period of one year from February 14, 2023; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-272, Macon County is authorized to
enter into the Lease to WATERWHEEL MANUFACTURING, INC, a North Carolina Business

Corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto, upon the passing of a Resolution authorizing the
same.

NOW THEREFORE, upon Motion of Commissioner ,
seconded by Comimissioner , and duly approved, be it
hereby resolved by the Macon County Board of County Commissioners as follows:

RESOLVED, that Macon County will not have a need for the real property described in
the Lease Waterwheel Manufacturing, Inc, a North Carolina Business Corporation, a copy of
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for and during the term of such
lease and does hereby declare the same to be surplus property; and

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby authorize the entry into the Lease
Waterwheel Manufacturing, Inc, a North Carolina Business Corporation, a copy of which is

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, for the period of one year from February
14,2021, through February 13, 2024; and

RESOLVED, that Derek Roland, Macon County Manager, is hereby authorized and directed
to fill in any blanks upon the same and execute said Lease to Waterwheel Manufacturing,
Inc, a North Carolina Business Corporation, on behalf of Macon County.

Adopted at the February 14, 2023 , Regular Meeting of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners..



Paul Higdon, Chairman, Macon County Board of
County Commissioners

ATTEST:

Derek Roland, Macon County Manager
and Clerk to the Board

( Official Seal )



NORTH CAROLINA
MACON COUNTY

LEASE TO WATERWHEEL MANUFACTURING
INC, A NORTH CAROLINA BUSINESS
CORPORATION,FROM MACON COUNTY

This lease is made this 14th day of February, 2023, by and between MACON
COUNTY, abody corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws of the State of
North Carolina, hereinafter called the "Lessor,” and Waterwheel Manufacturing, Inc, a North
Carolina Business Corporation, hereinafter called the "Tenant."

WITNESSETH:

That, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Landlord does herecby
demise and let and the Tenant does hereby rent and hire from the Landlord, those certain
premises (hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”) located at the Macon County Business
Development Center and more particularly shown in yellow and blue on Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein as limited hereinafter.

(1) Premises. Lessor leases unto the Tenant, and the Tenant accepts upon the full terms and
conditions of this lease, that certain space located in the Macon County Business Development
Center at the Macon County Industrial Park near Franklin, NC, as specifically shown in yellow
and blue on the drawing of the floor plan of the Business Development Center which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference as limited hereinafter. The space
designated on the drawing attached hereto as Exhibit A in the color yellow is leased unto the
Tenant for Tenant's exclusive use. The spaces outlined in blue and designated on the drawing as
the Men's and Women's Restrooms, Lounge, Janitor's Closet, Corridors and Loading Dock
may be used by Tenant for Tenant's non-exclusive use in common with any other tenants in the
Business Development Center and Lessor, together with such portion of the premises as is
reasonably necessary for access, parking and use of the leased premises.

(2) Term. Subject to the terms below, this lease shall commence February 14, 2023 and shall
continue for a term expiring at the end of February 13, 2024. THAT NOTWITHSTANDING
ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, LESSOR MAY END THIS
LEASE UPON 30 DAYS NOTICE TO TENANT WITHOUT LEGAL CONSEQUENCE.

(3) Rent. The Macon County Business Development Center is owned by Macon County as a
small business incubator to promote economic development and the growth of jobs in Macon
County. The lease of the premises to Tenant is in furtherance of that policy. The monthly rent for
the aforementioned space is $212.00 per month. Rent is due and payable on the Ist day of each
month in advance,



(4) Use of Premises. The leased premises shall only be used by Tenant for a business that does
Waterwheel Engineering &Design, Marketing and Sales

(5) No Assignment. This lease shall not be assigned by Tenant nor shall Tenant sublet the leased
premises or any portion thereof,

(6) Tenant's Responsibilities for Repairs. Tenant agrees to accept the premises in their present
condition and to maintain the interior components of the portion of the premises leased to Tenant
in a good state of repair during the term of this lease. Interior components shall include the
floors, walls, ceilings, electrical components, lighting fixtures, plumbing and plumbing fixtures,
Tenant shall be responsible for interior repairs in the portions of the premises leased to it
exclusively and in common with other tenants. If other space in the Center is leased to existing
or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by which all tenants using the
common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. At termination, Tenant shall surrender
the premises to the Lessor in as good condition as they now are, except for ordinary wear and
tear incident to the use of the premises.

(7) Lessor's Responsibilities for Repairs. Lessor shall make all necessary repairs to the exterior
of the premises, including the parking and driveway areas, exterior walls, windows and roof. Tn
the event the premises or any part thereof are substantially damaged by fire or other casualty to
the extent that necessary repairs will exceed twenty percent of the value of the building, the
partties agree that Lessor shall have no obligation to make the repairs and Lessor may elect to
either make the necessary repairs or to terminate the lease.

(8) Maintenance. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all routine and recurring
maintenance, including cleaning, trash removal and painting of the interior portion of the
premises leased to it exclusively and the portion of the premises leased to is as common area
with other tenants. If other space is leased to existing or additional tenants, the tenants shall
establish a procedure by which all tenants using the common area shall share in the cost of
such maintenance. Lessor shall continue to maintain the exterior premises including the
parking areas, driveways and landscaping/mowing.

(9) Abatement of Nuisances and Appearance. Tenant shall comply with all laws, rules
and regulations of any governmental jurisdiction applicable to the leased premises and shall
take all measures necessary to prevent or abate nuisances or other grievances arising out of the
manner of the occupancy of the premises for its business purposes. Tenant shall further
maintain the appearance of the premises in manner that is acsthetically pleasing and
consistent with other business users in the neighborhood and shall not accumulate trash
or debris nor display merchandise on the premises.

(10)  Utilities. Lessee shall be responsible for furnishing its utilities for Unit C, shown on
Exhibit A attached hereto. Lessor will provide utilities for the balance of the leased premises,



(11) Alterations. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the
premises without first obtaining written permission from the Lessor and any such alterations,
additions or improvements which are permitted shall inure to the benefit of the Lessor upon
expiration of the lease and surrender of the premises by the Tenant.

(12) Indemnification. Tenant shall indemnify Lessor and hold it harmless from and against any
and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expense in connection with the loss of life,
personal injury or damage to property occurring in or about, or arising out of, the leased
premises, or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission of Tenant, its agents, licensees,
concessionaires, customers or employees. In the event Lessor shall be made a party to any
litigation, commenced by or against Tenant, its agents, licensees, coneessionaires, customers or
employees, then Tenant shall protect and hold Lessor harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses
and reasonable attorneys' fees included or paid by Lessor in connection with such litigation.

(13) Environmental Matters. With respect to any pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substance or material defined as such in, or for purposes of, all
applicable environmental laws, rules, regulations and ordinances now or hereafter in effect
("Environmental Laws"), including without limitation, any waste constituents coming within the
definition or list of hazardous substances in 40 C.F.R. §$ 261.1 through 261.33 ("Hazardous
Material"), the Tenant represents, warrants and covenants that it will indemnify and hold Lessor
harmless from and against any and ail losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, interest, deficiencies,
fines, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, disbursements, and costs of investigation and
clean-up, including without limitation, claims, suits, and proceedings by federal, state, or local
government authorities with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of (1) the presence on or
under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission, discharging or releasing
from, the property of any Hazardous Material, if such oceurs during the term of the lease, (ii)
any other environmental pollution, including without limitation, any contaminant, waste, irritant
or pollutant, discharged into or otherwise contained in the environment at or adjacent to the
property if such occurs during the term of the lease, (jii) non-compliance relating to the Tenant's
business or the property with any Environmental Law or any other federal, state or local statute,
law, ordinance, rule, regulation, order or decree, or (iv) the inaccuracy, misrepresentation or
violation or default of or under any matter set forth in this section unless any such loss, liability,
damage, injury or the like is directly caused by negligent acts of the Lessor, In addition, the
Tenant shall at all times keep on file with the Macon County Fire Marshall a list of any of the
materials, substances, or chemicals described in this paragraph and stored or kept on the leased
premises.

(14} Incidents of Defuult. Each and every term of this lease is a material part of this lease and
continuation of the lease is conditioned on the parties’ adherence to its terms. The breach or
threatened breach of any of the lease terms by the Tenant shall be deemed an incident of default.
A declaration of insolvency or the filing of a petition of bankruptcy by the Tenant shall also be
deemed an incident of default. In the event Tenant defaults as defined in this paragraph, Lessor
may declare the lease terminated and retake possession of the premises upon allowing Tenant a
reasonable time to vacate the premises and remove its personal property from the premises.



(13) E-Verification. Tenant shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the
North Carolina General Statutes. Further, if Tenant utilizes a subcontractor, Tenant shall require
the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General
Statutes.

In testimony whereof, the parties have signed this lease on the date first written above in
duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties.

COUNTY OF MACON

By:

Macon County Manager

WATERWHEEL MANUFACTURING, INC
A North Carolina Business Corporation

By:

President






Other wastes No | No¢ No¢® No* Noe Nog*
Groundwater remediation Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes No
project discharges?
Agriculturee Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Silviculture f Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Residential Development 9 No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Non-residential No Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Development
Nonpoint Source Pollution? | Yes [ Yes Yes Yes Yes No
Animal Operations | Yes | Yes Yes Yes Yes No
Notes:

? Permitted pursuant to 15A NCAC 02B.0104
® Except non-process industrial discharges are allowed
¢ Only allowed if specified in 15A NCAC 02B.0104
4 Where no other practical alternative exists
¢ In WS-I watersheds and Critical Areas of WS-II and WS-III watersheds, agricultural activities
conducted after 1/1/1993 shall maintain a minimum 10 foot vegetated setback or equivalent
control as determined by SWCC along all perennial waters indicated on most recent version of
USGS 1:24000 scale (7.5 minute) topographic maps or as determined by local government
studies.
f Subject to Forest Practice Guidelines Related to Water Quality (02 NCAC 60C .0100 to .0209)
Effective 4/1/2018
9 See density requirements in 15A NCAC 02B.0624
h NPS pollution shall not have adverse impact, as defined in 15A NCAC 02H.1002, on use as
water supply or any other designated use.
' Animal operations deemed permitted, as defined in 15A NCAC (2T.0103 and permitted under
1SANCAC 02T.1300.

§156.32. WATERSHED AREAS - DENSITY AND BUILT-UPON LIMITS

(A) Project Density. The following maximum allowable project densities and minimum lot sizes
shall apply to a project according to the classification of the water supply watershed where it
is located, its relative location in the watershed, its project density, and the type of
development:

Maximum Allowable Project
Density or Minimum Lot Size
Water Supply Location in the Density Development
Classification Watershed Single-Family | Non-residential
Detached and all other
Residential residential*
WS-1 Not Applicable: Watershed shall remain undeveloped
except for the following uses when they cannot be

14



avoided: power transmission lines, restricted access roads,
and structures associated with water withdrawal, treatment
and distribution of the WS-I water. Built-upon area shall
be designed and located to minimize stormwater runoff
impact to receiving waters.
WS-II CA 1 dwelling unit | 6% built-upon
(du) per 2 acres | area
BW 1 du per L acre | 12% built-upon
area**
WS-III CA 1 duper lacre | 12% built-upon
area
BW 2 du per L acre | 24% built-upon
arca**
WS-EQW 2 duperlacre 18%built upon
area**

* For the purposes of calculating built-upon area, total project area shall
include total acreage in the tact on which the project is to be developed.

** SNIAs allowed upon approval by Rlanning BeardWatershed Administrator
—see Section C below

(B) Additional Requirements. In addition to complying with the project density requirements of

Paragraph (A) above, projects shall comply with the following;

(1) Vegetated Conveyances. Stormwater runoff from the project shall be released to vegetated

areas as dispersed flow or transported by vegetated conveyances to the maximum extent
practicable. In determining whether this criteria has been met, the County shall take into
account site-specific factors such as topography and site layout as well as protection of water
quality. Vegetated conveyances shall be maintained in perpetuity to ensure that they
function as designed. Vegetated conveyances that meet the following criteria shall be

deemed to satisfy the requirements of this sub-paragraph:

(a) Side slopes shall be no steeper than 3:1 (horizontal to vertical) unless it is demonstrated
to the local government that the soils and vegetation will remain stable in perpetuity

based on engineering calculations and on-site soil investigation; and

(b) The conveyance shall be designed so that it does not erode during the peak flow from

the 10-year storm event as demonstrated by engineering calculations.

(2) Curb Outlet Systerns. In lieu of vegetated conveyances, projects shall have the option to

use curb and gutter with outlets to convey stormwater to grassed swales or vegetated
areas. Requirements for these curb outlet systems shall be as follows:

15




(2) The curb outlets shall be located such that the swale or vegetated area can carry the
peak flow from the 10-year storm and at a non-erosjve velocity;

(b) The longitudinal slope of the swale or vegetated area shall not exceed 5% except
where not practical due to physical constraints. In these cases, devices to slow the rate
of runoff and encourage infiltration to reduce pollutant delivery shall be provided;

(c) The swale’s cross section shall be trapezoidal with a minimum bottom width of 2 feet;

(d) The side slopes of the swale or vegetated area shall be no steeper than 3:1 (horizontal
to vertical);

(¢) The minimum length of the swale or vegetated area shall be 100 feet; and

(f) Projects may use treatment swales designed in accordance with 15A NCAC 02H.1061
in lieu of the requirements specified in (a) through (&) above.

(C) Special Nonresidential Intensity Allocations (SNIA).

In WS-IT -Balance of Watershed, WS-III -Balance of Watershed and EQW watersheds, non
residential uses may occupy 10% of the balance of the watershed, which is outside the
critical area, with a 70% built-upon area when approved as a special nonresidential intensity
allocation (SNIA). The Plenning BeardWatershed Administrator is authorized to approve
SNIAs consistent with the provisions of this ordinance, and such approved projects shall be
awarded on a first come, first serve basis. Projects must minimize buiit-upon surface area,
direct stormwater away from surface waters and incorporate Best Management Practices to
minimize water quality impacts. Non-discharging landfills and residuals applications sites
are allowed. Recreational vehicle parks shall not be eligible for a SNIA.

Projects shall comply with the requirements set forth in Paragraph (B) above.
Projects that require point source discharges of a kind and nature which require permitting
under Federal, State or local laws, ordinances, rules or regulations (now in existerice or
hereafter enacted) are prohibited in WS-1I-BA, WS-III-BA and EQW watersheds.

§156.33 CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT

Clustering development is allowed in all Watershed areas (except WS-I) under the following
conditions:

(A)  Minimum lot sizes are not applicable to single family cluster development projects nor

recreational vehicle parks; however, the total number of lots shall not exceed the number of lots
allowed for single family detached developments in §156.31. Density or built-upon area for the

16















Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds
From Additional Settlements of Opioid Litigation

I. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds (“SAAF”) 1s to
direct Additional Funds from Additional Settlements of opioid litigation to the state
of North Carolina and local governments in a manner consistent with the
Memorandum of Agreement (‘MOA”) Between the State of North Carolina and
Local Governments on Proceeds Relating to the Settlement of Opioid Litigation that
has governed the distribution of Opioid Settlement Funds to the State and its Local
Governments since May 2022,

This SAAF does not change the scope or meaning of the MOA with respect to Opioid
Settlement Funds governed by the MOA. Instead, this SAAF applies the terms of
the MOA — with certain clarifications noted below — to the Additional Settlements
and Additional Funds described below.

II. SCOPE

A, Scope of the MOA. Under the terms of the MOA, the MOA governs Opioid
Settlement Funds from:

1. The National Settlement Agreement with the drug distributors
Cardinal, McKesson, and AmerisourceBergen and the drug maker
Johnson & Johnson and its subsidiary Janssen Pharmaceuticals; and

2. The Bankruptcy Resolution with Mallinckrodt; any Bankruptey
Resolution with Purdue; and any other Bankruptcy Resolution as the
term “Bankruptcy Resolution” is defined in the MOA.

B. Scope of this SAAF. This SAAF governs Additional Funds from the
Additional Settlements with Additional Settling Defendants Walmart, Inc.,
Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd., Allergan Finance, LLC, Allergan
Limited, CVS Health Corporation, CVS Pharmacy, Inc., and Walgreen Co., as
well as their subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, and directors named in the
Additional Settlements.



1I. APPLICATION OF THE MOA TO ADDITIONAL SETTLEMENTS

AND FUNDS

The MOA, which is incorporated herein by reference, governs Additional
Settlements and Additional Funds in every respect, except as set forth hereinbelow.
In the event of any conflict between the MOA and this SAAF, with respect to
Additional Settlements and Additional Funds, the provisions of this SAAF shall
take precedence.

A. Definitions.

1.

The definitions used in the MOA are incorporated by reference into

this SAAF.

. “Additional Funds” shall mean all funds allocated by the Additional

Settlements to the State or Local Governments for purposes of opioid
remediation activities, as well as any repayment of those funds and
any interest or investment earnings that nay accrue as those funds
are temporarily held before being expended on opioid remediation
strategies. Not included are funds made available in Additional
Settlements for the payment of the Parties’ litigation expenses or the
reimbursement of the United States Government.

. “Additional Settlements” means a national opioid settlement

agreement with the Parties and one or more of the Additional Settling
Defendants concerning alleged misconduct in manufacture, marketing,
promotion, distribution, or dispensing of an opioid analgesic.

“Additional Settling Defendants” means the defendants listed in
section I1.B of this SAAF.

. “Local Counsel” means legal counsel and law firms who have a

principal office in North Carolina and represented one or more North
Carolina counties and municipalities in litigation against one or more
Additional Settling Defendant concerning opioids.

“National Counsel” means legal counsel and law firms who have a
principal office outside of North Carolina and represented various
North Carolina counties and municipalities in litigation against one or
more Settling Defendant or Additional Settling Defendant concerning
opioids.

. “Required Local Governments” means all North Carolina counties and

municipalities that have filed litigation against any of the Settling
Defendants or Additional Settling Defendants.



B. Allocation of Additional Funds

1. Method of distribution. Pursuant to any Additional Settlements,
Additional Funds shall be distributed directly to the State, Local
Governments, and Local Counsel for such uses as set forth in the MOA
and this SAAF, provided Opioid Settlement Funds shall not be
considered funds of the State, any Local (Governments, or any Local
Counsel unless and until such time as each distribution is made.

2. Overall allocation of funds. Additional Funds shall be allocated as
follows with respect to each payment from the Additional Settling
Defendants: (i) 15% directly to the State (“State Additional Abatement
Fund”), (i1) 84.62% to abatement funds established by Local
Governments (“Local Additional Abatement Funds”), and (iii) 0.38% to
a Local Counsel Fee Fund described in section IV of this SAAF.

3. The allocation of Local Additional Abatement Funds between Local
Governments shall be as described in MOA section B.3. However, to
the extent required by the terms of an Additional Settlement, the
proportions set forth in MOA Exhibit G shall be adjusted: (1) to provide
no payment from an Additional Settlement to any listed county or
municipality that does not participate in the Additional Settlement;
and (ii) to provide a reduced payment from an Additional Settlement to
any listed county or municipality that signs onto the Additional
Settlement after the deadline specified by the Additional Settiement.

4. Municipal allocations of Local Additional Abatement Funds shall be as
described in MOA section B.4. Consistent with the manner in which
MOA section B.4.b has been interpreted by the parties to the MOA
with respect to Opioid Settlement Funds, a municipality that dirvects
Local Additional Abatement Funds to the county or counties in which
it 1s located pursuant to MOA section B.4 shall be relieved of any
reporting or other obligations under the MOA with respect to the
redirected funds.

5. The use of Additional Funds for opioid remediation activities shall be
as described in MOA section B.5.

6. All Parties acknowledge and agree the Additional Settlements will
require a Local Government to release all its claims against the
Additional Settling Defendants to receive Additional Funds. All Parties
further acknowledge and agree based on the terms of the Additional
Settlements, a Local Government may receive funds through this
SAAF only after complying with all requirements set forth in the
Additional Agreements to release its claims.



C. Payment of Litigating and Non-Litigating Parties

No party engaged in litigating the MDL Matter shall receive a smaller
payment than a similarly situated non-litigating Party, other than as
based on the Allocation Proportions in MOA Exhibit Q.

D. Special Revenue Fund

Every Local Government receiving Additional Funds shall either (1)
deposit the Additional Funds in the special revenue fund that the
Local Government created for Opioid Settlement Funds pursuant to
MOA section D.1 or (2) create a separate special revenue fund as
described in MOA section D.1 that is designated for the receipt and
expenditure of the Additional Funds. In either case, every Local
Government receiving Additional Funds shall abide by MOA section D
and other relevant provisions of the MOA with respect to the
Additional Funds in the special revenue fund.

E. Opioid Remediation Activities

1. Local Governments shall expend Additional Funds according to the
requirements for Opioid Settlement Funds stated in MOA section E.

2. The coordination group established by MOA section E.7 and described
in MOA Exhibit D shall have the same responsibilities with respect to
remediation activities funded by Additional Funds and related
requirements and procedures that it has with respect to the Opioid
Settlement Funds covered by the MOA.

F. Auditing, Compliance, Reporting, and Accountability

1. The Auditing, Compliance, Reporting, and Accountability provisions
stated in MOA section F shall apply to Additional Funds in the way
they apply to Opioid Settlement Funds.

2. The coordination group established by MOA section E.7 and described
in MOA Exhibit D shall have the same responsibilities with respect to
auditing, compliance, reporting, and accountability provisions relating
to Additional Funds that it has with respect to the Opioid Settlement
Funds covered by the MOA.



G. Effectiveness

1. When this SAAF takes effect. This SAAF shall become effective at the
time a sufficient number of Local Governments have joined the SAAF
to qualify the SAAF as a State-Subdivision Agreement under the
Additional Settlements. If this SAAF does not thereby qualify as a
State-Subdivision Agreement, this SAAF will have no effect.

2. Amendments to the SAAF,

a. Amendments to conform to final national documents. The
Attorney General, with the consent of a majority vote from a
group of Local Government attorneys appointed by the
Association of County Commissioners, may initiate a process
to amend this SAAF to make any changes required by the final
provisions of the Additional Settlements. The Attorney
General's Office will provide written notice of the necessary
amendments to all the previously joining parties. Any
previously joining party will have a two-week opportunity to
withdraw from the SAAF. The amendments will be effective to
any party that does not withdraw.

b. Coordination group. The coordination group may make the
changes to the SAAF described and authorized in MOA
Exhibit D.

¢. No amendments to allocation between Local Governments.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this SAAF, the
allocation proportions set forth in MOA Exhibit G may not be
amended.

d. General amendment power. After execution, the coordination
group may propose other amendments to the SAAF, subject to
the limitation in Section G.2.c of this SAAF. Such
amendments will take effect only if approved in writing by the
Attorney General and at least two-thirds of the Local
Governments who are Parties to this SAAF. In the vote, each
Local Government Party will have a number of votes measured
by the allocation proportions set forth in MOA Exhibit G.

3. Acknowledgement. The Parties acknowledge this SAAF is an effective
and fair way to address the needs arising from the public health crisis
due to the misconduct committed by the Pharmaceutical Supply Chain
Participants.



. When SAAT is no longer in effect. This SAAT is effective until one
year after the last date on which any (a) Opioid Settlement Funds are
being spent by Local Governments pursuant to the National
Settlement Agreement and any Bankruptcy Resolution or (b)
Additional Funds are being spent by Local Governments pursuant to
the Additional Settlements.

. Application of SAAF to settlements. This SAAF applies to the
Additional Settlements.

. Applicable law and venue. Unless required otherwise by the
Additional Settlements, this MOA shall be interpreted using North
Carolina law and any action related to the provisions of this SAAF
must be adjudicated by the Superior Court of Wake County. Ifany
provision of this SAAF is held invalid by any court of competent
Jwrisdiction, this invalidity does not affect any other provision which
can be given effect without the invalid provision.

. Scope of this SAAF. The Parties acknowledge this SAAF does not
excuse any requirements placed upon them by the terms of the
Additional Settlements, except to the extent those terms allow for a
State-Subdivision Agreement to do so.

. No third party beneficiaries. No person or entity 1s intended to be a
third party beneficiary of this SAAF.

. No effect on authority of parties. Nothing in this SAAF shall be
construed to affect or constrain the authority of the Parties under lasy.

10.8igning and execution of this SAAF. This SAAF may be signed and

executed simultaneously in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same agreement. A signature transmitted by facsimile,
electronic iinage, or DocuSign shall be deemed an original signature for
purposes of executing this SAAF. Each person signing this SAAF
represents he or she is fully authorized to enter into the terms and
conditions of, and to execute, this SAAF, and all necessary approvals
and conditions precedent to execution have been satisfied.



1IV. LOCAL COUNSEL FEE FUND

Local Counsel have reviewed the Additional Settlements, find them to be equitable,
and recommend their clients execute these Additional Settlements and this SAAF.
If (1) all Local Counsel sign this SAAF whereby they consent to the terms of this
SAAF and agree to be legally bound by this SAAF, including but not limited to Section
IV of this SAAF, and (2) all Required Local Governments agree on or before April 18,
2023 to dismiss all litigation against the Additional Settling Defendants as required
by the Additional Settlements, then each Local Counsel shall be entitled to receive a
portion of the Local Counsel Fee Fund for the Additional Settlements, in such
proportions as set forth below. If one or more Required Local Governments does not
dismiss litigation as required by the Additional Settlements, then the 0.38% share
of Additional Funds set forth in Section 111.B.2 of this SAATF for the Local Counsel
Fee Fund shall be included in the Local Additional Abatement Funds, such that
85% of the Additional Funds will be allocated to Local Additional Abatement Funds,
and 0% will be allocated to the Local Counsel Fee Fund.

Local Counsel release all North Carolina counties and municipalities from any
claim regarding the obligation to pay legal fees or costs relating to their
representation of North Carolina counties and municipalities regarding opioid
claims and litigation against the Settling Defendants and Additional Settling
Defendants. Local Counsel retain their rights to recover legal fees from any
national legal fee fund established by a national settlement and to collect any fees
due from National Counsel. If one or more National Counsel fails to release its
North Carolina client counties and/or municipalities from any contractual obligation
to pay legal fees or costs relating to their representation of North Carolina counties
and municipalities regarding opioid claims and litigation against the Settling
Defendants and Additional Settling Defendants, as required for National Counsel
and Local Counsel to receive a portion of the national fee funds created by the
National Settlement Agreements and Additional Settlement, then the 0.38% share
of Additional Funds set forth in Section I11.B.2 of this SAAT for the Local Counsel
Fee Fund shall be included in the Local Additional Abatement Funds, such that
85% of the Additional Funds will be allocated to Local Additional Abatement Funds,
and 0% will be allocated to the Local Counsel Fee Fund.

As soon as practicable, but in any event no later than May 1, 2023, Local Counsel
shall report to the settlement administrator the proportion of the Local Counsel Fee
Fund to be received by each Local Counsel. No funds shall be paid out of the Local
Counsel Fee Fund until such report is received. Each Local Counsel’s release of
claims against all North Carolina counties and municipalities as provided above
shall remain in full force and effect regardless of the proportion of the Local Counsel
Fee Fund that any Local Counsel receives.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, through their duly authorized officers, have
executed this Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds under seal as of the
date hereof.

By:
Name:
Title:
County/City/Town of
Date:




SETTLEMENT STATEMENT

SELLER'S NAME AND ADDRESS:

BUYER'S NAME AND ADDRESS:

COUNTY OF MACON, a North Carolina
Body Politie,

5 W Main St.

Franklin, NC 28734

ANAKEESTA PROPERTIES, LLC, a North

Carolina limited liability company,

11A Schulman St.
Sylva, NC 28779

PROPERTY LOCATION:

Parcel Identification Number: 7507-68-4263
Cowee Township, 1.07 acres
Lot #307 — Wildflower Subdivision

SUMMARY OF BUYER’S TRANSACTION

SUMMARY OF SELLER’S TRANSACTION

Contract Sales Price 5,000.00 | Contract Sales Price 5,000.00

Recording Fee 26.00 | Recording Fee 26.00

GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM BUYER 5,026.00 | GROSS AMOUNT DUE TO SELLER 5,026.00

Bid Deposit 250.00 | Bid Deposit Retained by Seller 250.00

TOTAL PAID FROM BUYER 250.00 | TOTAL REDUCTION AMOUNT 250.00
DUE SELLER

CASH FROM BUYER | 4,776.00 | CASH TO SELLER | 4,776.00 |

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of a completed copy of this statement and any attachments

referred to herein.

Buyer: Anakeesta Properties, LLC

Robert S. Young, Managing Partner

Seller: County of Macen, a North Carolina Body

Politic

Paul Higdon, Chairman
Board of Commissioners

Derek Roland, Macon County Manager

Attest:




NORTH CAROLINA SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

Excigse Tax: Exempt

Parcel ID: 7607-68-4263

Mail/Box to: Ridenour & Goss, P.A., PO Box 965, Sylva, NC 28779
Prepared by: Eric Ridenour

Brief description | Lot #307 Wildflower Subdivision, 1.07 acres

for the Index:

THIS SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED (“Deed”) is made on the
and between;

day of February, 2023, by

GRANTOR GRANTEE

COUNTY OF MACON, a North Carolina Body ANAKEESTA PROPERTIES, LLC, a North

Politic, Carolina limited liability company,
5 W Main St. 11A Schulman St.
Franklin, NC 28734 Sylva, NC 28779

The designations Grantor and Grantee include the above parties and their respective heirs,
successors, and assigns, whether singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter, as required by context,

WHEREAS, the County of Macon accepted a bid made by Anakeesta Properties, LLC, on
November 7, 2022, for the land hereinafter described; and

WHEREAS, the County of Macon did publish notice of said bid in accordance with G.S. §180A-
269; and

WHEREAS, more than ten (10) days elapsed after publication of said notice without any
advanced or upset bid being offered and without any exceptions being filed.

NOW THEREFORE, for valuable consideration paid by Girantee, the receipt and legal
sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Grantor by this Deed does hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey
to Grantee, in fee simple, all that certain lot, parcel of land or condominium unit in Cowee Township,
Macon County, North Carolina and more particularly described as follows (the “Property™:



BEING a 1.07 acre, more or less, tract of land bearing parcel identification number
7507-68-4263, according to the Macon County Mapping Office, known as Lot #307
of Wildflower Subdivision, as shown on a survey eutitled “Wildflower Subdivision
— Phase VI, Block C, for Ultima WNC Development, prepared by Robert C. Brown,
Professional Land Surveyor, dated April 27, 2007, which plat is recorded at Plat
Card Number 5096, Macon County Public Registry to which reference is made for
a more complete description.

ALSO BEING the same lands described and conveyed by deed from Kelly
Langteau-Ball, Commissioner, to The County of Macon, a North Carolina Body
Politic, recorded on October 24, 2022, in Deed Book E-42 at Page 236, Macon
County Registry, to which reference is made for a more complete description.

Subject to the payment of all Wildflower Property Owners Association, Inc.
assessments that accrued on or after October 24, 2022,

Together with all appurtenances and subject to any and all easements, well rights,
restrictive covenants, and road rights-of-way of record.

All or a portion of the Property O includes or ® does not include the primary residence of a
Grantor,

A map showing the Property is recorded in Plat Card Number 5096,

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property and all privileges and appurtenances thereto
belonging to Grantee in fee simple. Grantor covenants with Grantee that Grantor has done nothing
to Impair such title as Grantor veceived, and Grantor shall warrant and defend the title against the
lawful claims of all persons claiming by, under or through Grantor, other than the following exceptions:

Easement(s) and right(s)-of-way for public utilities of record, if any.

Ad valorem taxes due for the current year.

[Signature Page Follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, Grantor has duly executed this North Carolina Special Warranty
Deed, if an entity by its duly authorized representative.

COUNTY OF MACON, A NORTH CAROLINA
BODY POLITIC

By: (Seal)
PAUL HIGDON, CHAIRMAN
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ATTEST:

By: {Seal)
DEREK ROLAND, MACON COUNTY MANAGER,
CLERK TO THE BOARD

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

I, the undersigned Notary Public of North Carolina, has personal knowledge of the identity of
Derek Roland, and hereby certifies that said Derek Roland, Macon County Manager and Clerk to the
Board, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is Clerk to the Board of
Commissioners of County of Macon and that Paul Higdon is the Chairman of the Board of
Commissioners of Macon County, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the County of
Macon, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by said Chairman, sealed with its official geal,
and voluntarily attested to by himself as its Clerk as the act and deed of the County of Macon, all by
its authority duly given by its governing body. Witness my hand and Notarial stamp or seal this
day of , 2023,

My Commniission Expires:
(Affix Seal) Notary Public







MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
January 10, 2023
MINUTES

Chairman Higdon called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. All Board
Members, County Manager Derek Roland, Finance Director Lori
Carpenter, County Attorney Eric Ridenour, Deputy Clerk Mike Decker
and members of the news media were present, as were a number of
county employees and citizens.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:
{A) Mr. Roland informed the board that a North Carolina
Association of County Commissioners (NCACC) caucus
meeting for District 17 will be held on Friday, January 13,
2023 at 11:00 a.m. via Zoom. He requested board members
let him know if they wanted to attend.

(B} Mr. Roland asked board members to consider beginning the
budget work sessions on February 9, 2023 at 1:00 p.m.,
which would mean the board would need to recess this
meeting until February 9, 2023,

MOMENT OF SILENCE: Chairman Higdon requested all in attendance
rise and a moment of silence was observed.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Led by Commissioner Higdon, the pledge to
the flag was recited.

PUBLIC HEARING(S): None

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Bob Cook spoke about fentanyl and synthetic
opioid use stating that he believed education, aggressive enforcement and
rehabilitation was needed to reduce the use in Macon County. He suggested
that a rehabilitation facility for men and women of Macon County be built in
Minutes
01.10.23
Page 1 of §



the county, using the opioid settlement funds. Mr. Cook also suggested that
the old hospltal could be utilized for a rehab facility. Julie Hennmg asked that
everyone join together and support building anew Fr

about the operations of government. Mary Ann Ingram congratulated the new
and re-elected board members. She addressed some comments about the
Franklin High School project made during the joint meeting with the board of
education. She stated that a new high school is an emergency and suggested
board members keep looking at ways to build a new high school until a
solution is found.

ADDITIONS, ADJUSTMENTS TO AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Upon a
motion by Commissioner Young, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board
voted unanimously to approve the agenda, as adjusted, as follows:
o To add Item 11C, Discussion about parks under New Business, per Mr.
Antoine
e To adjust Item 10B, Consideration of contract for Highlands Middle
School renovations under Old Business, to include the budget
amendment that has been distributed, per Ms. Carpenter.

Update of NC Dept. of Commerce county tier designations — Economic
Development Director Tommy Jenkins, provided an update on the latest tier
designations for counties from the North Carolina Department of Commerce.
He shared that Macon County has been designated as a Tier 2 county for 2023,
with Tier 1 being the most distressed counties and Tier 3 being the least
distressed counties. Mr. Jenkins explained that the rankings are scored from 1
to 100, with 1 being the most distressed and 100 being the least distressed.
He pointed out that the overall score for Macon County was 79, one position
away from Tier 3 (20 least distressed counties}, and also provided a handout of
the 2023 North Carolina Development Tier Designations memo which explains

the designation process [Attach

Update on 2023 Property Reappraisal — Tax Administrator Abby Braswell
presented a PowerPoint presentation updating the board on the status and
timeline for the 2023 reappralsal process [Attachi t 2. She stated the
estimated taxable value is $12,600,000,000 as determined by the mass
appraisal, however, sales, exemptions, exclusions, deferments, and appeals are
all going to affect that reappraisal total. Ms. Braswell indicated that the
reappraisal notices will be distributed in February 2023, informal reviews will
be held from February to April 2023, dates for the Board of Equalization and
Review hearings will be set in March, and hearings will be held in April 2023,

Minutes
01.10.23
Page 2 of §



OLD BUSINESS:

Commission liaison appointments - Chairman Higdon presented his
proposed liaison appointments to the board and Mr. Roland read them
aloud, Upon a motion by Commissioner Young, seconded by
Commissioner Shields, the board voted unanimously to approve the
appointments as presented.

Consideration of contract for Highlands Middle School renovations —
Mr. Roland presented a proposed contract with LS3P for the board’s
consideration, and stated the board of education has made this project
their second priority following the Franklin High School project. He
indicated the project had been approved by the Department of Public
Instruction (DPI) with an estimated cost of $634,000 with the funding
coming from the North Carolina Repair and Renovation Fund.
Commissioner Shields made a motion, seconded by Commissioner
Shearl, to approve the contract and budget amendment in the amount of
$63,430 as presented. The vote was unanimous.

Discussion of Request for Proposals (RFP) for broadband services in
the Nantahala Community - Mr. Roland and Jeff Lee of Little T
Broadband Services discussed the distribution of a RFP for Fiber Optic
Deployment and Network Operator in the Nantahala Township. Mr. Lee
stated the RFP would be made available to all qualified providers and
reminded the board that $400,000 of county funding had been included
as an incentive to finding a provider in that area. He indicated that once
the project is complete, the Nantahala Library and Community Center,
Nantahala Volunteer Fire Department, Macon County Emergency
Services, and the recreation center will be connected to fiber internet.
Commissioner Shields made a motion, seconded by Commissioner
Young, to approve distribution of the RFP as presented subject to legal
and financial approve. The vote was unanimous.

NEW BUSINESS

Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund (LATCF) — Mr. Roland
and Mrs. Carpenter briefed board members and provided background
information on the Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund. Mrs.
Carpenter indicated that Macon County is eligible to receive two
payments of $459,842.41 each, for a total of $919,684.82. She said
these funds will go into the general fund for budget purposes to be used
for anything except lobbying. Commissioner Young made a motion,
seconded by Commissioner Shields, to apply for the funding. The vote
was unanimous.

Minutes
01.10.23
Page 3 of 5



Discussion of recreation park fee schedule - Chairman Higdon asked
Parks and Recreation Director, Seth Adams to explain the fee schedule
associated with the county’s recreation parks. Mr. Adams provided a
handout and stated that the fee schedule was approved by the board on
February 12, 2019 and has not been updated. He shared that a
comparison of surrounding counties and the Town of Highlands was
completed before finalizing the fee structure. After discussion regarding
fees for shows and weekend events, Commissioner Shields made a
motion to keep the fees as they are, then withdrew the motion. No action
was taken.

Park issue — Commissioner Antoine followed up on a concern mentioned
at a previous meeting during public comment and in an email he
received about local playgrounds not being handicapped accessible. He
recommended partnering with the Town of Franklin to make a larger
park that can be used by both handicapped and non-handicapped
individuals. Commissioner Antoine requested Mr. Roland schedule a
meeting with the Town of Franklin to discuss the possibilities.

CONSENT AGENDA: Upon a motion by Commissioner Shields, seconded by
Commissioner Young, the board voted unanimously to approve the consent
agenda as presented which includes: (A) Minutes of the December 13, 2022
special meeting (joint meeting with Macon County Board of Education), (B)
Budget Amendments #118-122, (C) Tax releases for the month of December in
the amount of $6,740.67, and (D) Monthly ad valorem tax collection report for
which no action is necessary.

APPOINTMENTS: None
CLOSED SESSION: At 8:04 p.m., upon a motion by Commissioner Young,

seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted unanimously to go into
closed sess10n as allowed under NCGS 143-318 11(a)(3) in order to preserve the

: co tract: At 8:16 p m., upon a motlon by Comm1ss1oner Young, seconded by
Commissioner Shearl, the board voted unanimously to come out of closed
session and return to open session. Mr. Roland shared that a bid in the
amount of $5,000 was submitted by Anakista Properties for Lot 307 in the

Minutes
01.10.23
Page 4 of §



Wildflower developme
¢ oner St

‘to'accept the:

RECESS: With no other business, at 8:20 p.m., upon a motion from
Commissioner Shields, seconded by Commissioner Young, the board voted

unanimously to recess until February 9, 2023 at 1:00 p.m. for a budget work
session.

Derek Roland Paul Higdon
Ex Officio Clerk to the Board Board Chair

Minutes
01.10.23
Page 5 of 5













































LGC-205 CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS Rev. 11/2022

SIGNATURE PAGE

AUDIT FIRM

Audit Firm*
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.

Authorized Firm Representative (typed or printedy* | Signature*

Amber Y. McGhinnis (wln Y W Mlmsei
i

Date* Email Address*
02/08/23 amcghinnis@msa.cpa

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Governmental Unit*
Macon County, NC

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved Audit Contract*
(G.5.159-34(a) or G.5.115C-447(a))

Mayor/Chairperson (typed or printed)* Signature*
Paul Higdon, Chairman
Date Email Address

paul.higdon@maconnc.org

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or “NA”) | Signature
N/A
Date Email Address

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT - PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1).
Not applicable to hospital contracts.

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act or by the School Bucdget and Fiscal Control Act.

Primary Governmental Unit Finance Officer* tped orprines| Signature*

Lori M. Carpenter, Finance Director

Date of Pre-Audit Cerlificate* Email Address*
lhall@maconnc.org

Page 8












Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that certain
supplementary information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we
will apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RS1) in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures will consist
primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods of measurement and presentation, and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not
express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI is required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This RSI will be subjected to
certain limited procedures but wili not be audited:

» Management’s Discussion and Analysis

e Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance schedules
¢  Other Post-Employment Benefits’ schedules

* Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System’s schedules

¢ Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund schedules

Supplementary information other than RST will accompany Macon County’s basic financial statements. We
will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on the
following supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole:

¢ Combining and individual fund financial statements
Budget and actual schedules

+ Supplemental ad valorem tax schedules

» Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

We will subject the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling the schedule to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion on whether
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is presented fairly in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Also, the document we submit to you will include the following other additional information that will not
be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements:

s [ntroductory section
s Statistical section

Data Collection Form

Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection Form that
are our responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and conclusions. It is

Page 2 of 10



management’s responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial statements, Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action
plan along with the Data Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. The financial reporting
package must be text searchable, unencrypted, and unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be
accepted by the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. We will assist you in the electronic submission and
certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package
submitted to pass-through entities.

The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our
auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal
cognizant or oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the factors
in assessing programs at a higher risk.

Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America; the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requivements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act. As part of an audit of financial statements in accordance with GAAS and in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the
audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Macon County’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards of the
Comptroller General of the United States of America. Please note that the determination of abuse is
subjective and Government Auditing Standards does not require auditors to detect abuse.

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other
periods.

Page 3 of 10



We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Macon County’s basic financial statements.
Our report will be addressed to the governing body of Macon County. Circumstances may arise in which
our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on
the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-
matter or other-matter paragraph(s) to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement.
Ifour opinions on the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement.

Inaccordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with
laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However,
providing an opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will not be an objective
of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be expressed.

Audit of Major Program Compliance

Our audit of Macon County’s major federal and state award program(s) compliance will be conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as amended, the Uniform Guidance, and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of
major programs in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act
and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal and
state award program compliance and to render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an
unmodified opinion on compliance will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for
us to modify our opinion or withdraw from the engagement.

The Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we also plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with applicable
laws and regulations, the provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major federal and state
award programs, and the applicable compliance requirements occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the entity’s compliance based on the audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements is considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
of the report on compliance about the entity’s compliance with the requirements of the federal or state
programs as a whole.

As part of a compliance audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also identify and
assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or eror, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks.

Our procedures will consist of determining major federal and state programs and, performing the applicable
procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement for the
types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the entity’s major
programns, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. The
purpose of those procedures will be to express an opinion on the entity’s compliance with requirements
applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to the Uniform
Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.

Page <4 of 10



Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, we will obtain
an understanding of the entity’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design and
perform tests of controls to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we
consider relevant to preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements
applicable to each of the entity’s major federal and state award programs. Our tests will be less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, ne opinion will be
expressed in our report. However, we will communicate to you, regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we have identified during the audit.

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the
entity’s major federal and state award programs, and a report on internal controls over com pliance that will
report any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identitied; however, such report will not express
an opinion on internal control.

Management’s Responsibilities

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with
governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:

L. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

2. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error;

3. Foridentifying, in its accounts, ali federal and state awards received and expended dutring the period
and the federal and State programs under which they were received:

4. For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for federal and
state funded activities;

5. For preparing the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards (including notes and
noncash assistance received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and State Single Audit
Implementation Act;

6. For designing, implementing, and maintaining effective intemal control over federal and state
awards that provides reasonable assurance that the entity is managing federal and state awards in
compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal
and state awards;

7. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal and state laws, statutes,
regulations, rules, provisions of confracts or grant agreements, and the terms and conditions of
federal and state award programs, and implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with
applicable federal and state statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of federal and state
award programs;

8. For disclosing accurately, currently and conpletely the financial results of each federal and state
award in accordance with the requirements of the award;

9. For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or other
studies that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related recommendations
have been implemented,;

10. For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified;

11. For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining a
process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective action on
reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedule of prior audit
findings;

12. For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a
corrective action plan for such findings;

Page 5 of 10



13. For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;

14. For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the contractor is
responsible for program compliance;

15. To provide us with:

a.  Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements including the disclosures, and relevant to federal
and state award programs, such as records, documentation, and other inatters;

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit;

¢, Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

d. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to issue that will
be included in the annual report and the planned timing and method of issuance of that annual
report (if applicable); and

e. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, comprise the
annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor’s report (if applicable).

16. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year or period(s) under audit are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole;

17. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest
work;

18. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding
assets;

19. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management,
employees with significant roles in internal control and others where fraud could have a material
effect on compliance;

20. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided;

21. For taking reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and other sensitive
information; and

22. For contirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your
management representation letter,

With regard to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards referred to above, you
acknowledge and understand your responsibility (a) for the preparation of the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, (c) to include our report on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards in any document that contains the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State
Awards and that indicates that we have reported on such schedule, and (d) to present the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards with the audited financial statements, or if the schedule will not
be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited basic financial statements readily
available to the intended users of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards no later than
the date of issuance by you of the schedule and our report thereon.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appro riate, those charged with
P s =
governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit.

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents
or invoices selected by us for testing.

If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the basic financial statements and make reference to our
firm, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing.

Page 6 of 10



You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval before it is
distributed.

Nonattest Services

We will perform the following nonattest services;
¢  Draft of financial statements and footnotes
s (GASB 34 conversion entries
s Preparation of auditor portions of Data Collection Form
¢ Preparation of LGC’s data input worksheet

We will not assume management respensibilities on behalf of Macon County. However, we will provide
advice and recommendations to assist management of Macon County in performing its responsibilities.

Macon County’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all
management functions; (b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (c) evaluating the
adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the
services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing
activities.

Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows:

*  We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards.

* The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole
professional judginent, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could
be construed as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including
detennining account coding and approving journal entries.

Other Matters

During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail,
and you should be aware that communication in those mediutns contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted
coinmunications.

Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are & means to
distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or
to consider the consistency of other infornnation in the electronic site with the original document.

Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial and
non-financial data. As such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and we
cannot be responsible to maintain such original information. By signing this engagement letter, you affirm
that you have all the data and records required to make your books and records complete,

During the course of the engagement, a portal will be in place for information to be shared, but not
stored. Our policy is to terminate access to this portal after one year. The County is respensible for data
backup for business continuity and disaster recovery, and our workpaper documentation is not to be used
for these purposes.

Provisions of Engagement Administration and Fees

Marcie Spivey is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. Her responsibilities
include supervising Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.’s services performed as part of this
engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firin representative to sign the audit report. To

Page 7 of 10



ensure that our independence is not impaired under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct, you agree
to inform the engagement partner before entering into any substantive em ployment discussions with any of
our personnel,

Our fees for these services are as follows:

Audit Fee b 72,800
Financial Statement Drafting 11,500
5 84,300

Additional Fees:
Charge per major program in excess of 2 § 3,750

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered in four installments as work progresses and are payable upon
presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becontes
overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for
non-payment, our engagement will be deeimed to have been completed upon written notification of
tennination, even if we have not completed our reports. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.

We will notify you immediately of any circumstances we encounter that could signiticantly affect this initial
fee estimate. Whenever possible, we will attempt to use Macon County’s personnel to assist in the
preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts. This effort could substantially reduce our time
requirements and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit. Further, we will be available during the year
to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters of a routine nature.

We want our clients fo receive the maximum value for our professional services and to perceive that our
fees are reasonable and fair. In working to provide you with such value, we find there are certain
circumstances that can cause us to perform work in excess of that contemplated in our fee estimate.

Following are some of the inore common reasons for potential supplemental billings:
Changing Laws and Regulations

There are many governmental and rule-making boards that regularly add or change their requirements.
Although we attempt to plan our work to anticipate the requirements that will affect our engagement, there
are times when this is not possible. We will discuss these situations with you at the earliest possible time
in order to mmake the necessary adjustments and amendments in our engagement.

Incorrect Accounting Methods or Errors in Client Records

We base our fee estimates on the expectation that client accounting records are in order so that our work
can be completed using our standard testing and accounting procedures. However, should we find numerous
errors, incomplete records, or the application of incorrect accounting methods, we will have to perform
additional work to make the corrections and reflect those changes in the financial statements.

Failure to Prepare for the Engagement

In an eftort to minimize your fees, we assign you the responsibility for the preparation of schedules and
docurments needed for the engagement. We also discuss matters such as availability of your key personnel,
deadlines, and work space. If your personnel are unable, for whatever reasons, to provide these items as
previously agreed upon, it might substantially increase the work we must do to complete the engagement
within the scheduled time.

Page 8 of 10



Starting and Stopping Ouwr Work

If we must withdraw our staff because of the condition of the client's records, or the failure to provide
agreed upon items within the established timeline for the engagement, we will not be able to perform our
work in a timely, efficient manner, as established by our engagement plan. This will result in additional
fees, as we must reschedule our personnel and incur additional start-up costs.

Our fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. Our fees for such
services range from $85-$390 per hour,

Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and
experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial
statements and related schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service.

During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over,
your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either
orally or in writing.

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become aware
during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued.

We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date
of our report.

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become
aware during the period from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued.

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to mmanagement and those charged with
governance the following significant findings from the audit:

*  Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices;

e Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

* Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;

* Disagreements with management, if any;

¢ Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment,
significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial
reporting process;

e Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of
our audit procedures;

* Representations we requested from management;

e Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and

» Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of
correspondence, with management,

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.
and constitutes confidential information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit
documentation available to the Local Government Commission, Office of the State Auditor, federal or state
agencies and the U.S. Government Accountability Office pursuant to authority given to it by law or
regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided under
the supervision of Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A.’s personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we
may provide copies of selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators. The regulators and

Page 9 of 10



agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including
other governmental agencies.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our
latest external peer review report of our firm to the Contract to Audit Accounts for your consideration and
files.

Please sign and return a copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the
arrangements for our audit of the financial statements and compliance over major federal and state award

programs, including our respective responsibilities.

We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with
you and your staff.

Respectfully,

Martins Alirnas € Qosocistin), CPs,PA.

Martin Starnes & Assoclates, CPAs, P.A.
Hickory, Notth Carolina

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding.
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of Macon County by:

Signature:

Title:

Date:

Page 10 of 10









Application for Appointment to Macon County
Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees

The Macon County Board of Commissioners believes all citizens should have the opportunity to
Participate in governmental decisions. The Board wants to appoint qualified, knowledgeable and
dedicated people to serve on authorities, boards and committees. If you have an interest in being
considered for an appointment to any advertised vacancy, please thoroughly complete the form
below before the advertised deadline and choose from the following options.

Mail to: County Manager's Office
5 West Main Street or FAX to:828-349-2400
Franklin, North Carolina 28734

Any Questions, please call the County Manager's Office at (é28) 349-2025

Name of Authority, Board or Coinmittee applying fos: [Planning Board

Name |Larry A. Lackey, Jr.

Address|284 Coweeta Lake Circle City IOHO !NC Zip [28763
Telephone: Hoine |cell 941-875-4196 Work |828-524-9185 '
Occupation iProfessianal Engineer (Civil/Structural) f

Business Address |125 Hightands Rd Franklin, NC 28734 ,

Email Address alfackey@dnet.net

Briefly explain any anticipated conflict of interest you may have if appointed:

None

Educational Background

BSCE (Bachelor of Science Clvil Engineering)

Business and Civic Experiences/Skills:

Professional Engineer in NC, Owner Engineering Firm Macon County, NC

Areas of Expertise and Interest/Skills:

Civil and Structural Enginearing, Bullding Design, Utilities, Water Resources/Stormwater

List any Authorities, Boards, Commissions or Committees presently serving on:

None

SIGNATURE: M DATE: {11/23/2022




Application for Appointment to Macon County :
Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees

The Macon County Board of Commissioners believes all citizens should have the opportunity to:
Participate in governmental decisions. The Board wants to appoint qualified, knowledgeable and
dedicated people to serve on authorities, boards and committees. If you have an interest in being
considered for an appointment to any advertised vacancy, please thoroughly complete the form
below before the advertised deadline and choose from the following options.

Mail to: County Manager's Office .
5 West Main Street- . or FAX to: 828-349-2400
Franklin, North Carolina 28734

Any Questions, please call the County Manager’s Ofﬁce at (828) 349-2025 -

Name of Autharity, Board or Committee applying for: I PL ANNING Bo ARTS

Nme | Lee py, WaVTERS
Address|38 OTrer. Casew Ro . City| NadTanaLA _Nezip | 3 e7es]
Telephone: Home I 629 ~221-0o4o . Work I '
Occupation | TNy ave e ADTUSTER - RETIRED

Business Address
Email Address

LEE Wa14mRrS @ Avrmali, Com

Briefly explain any anticipated conflict of interest you may have if appointed:

No conFriers

Educational Background )

43300 c‘ATE" TN Twsutanits @l ims

Business and Civic Experiences/Skills:

/3',+cze/2_ouuo 73V 1;\/5'{/@1/\:/_5:' A0 ConSreverion

NVOLVED . IAJ. ~ e 0 i Porg wOsezotd. Covries
Ar %‘Expcrﬁscgméa{tcgs%gﬁg!% A0 ZopinG ROTEETS. [ %ﬁ&zm ,4) *

T MeM Sz, ol A/MA/M% Q-Mm«,wny ﬂe’c/b‘w,amemr Clug -

List any Authorities, Boards, Commissions or Committees presently serving on:

éIGNATURE: %ﬂ// &(%% DATE:l_ /3/5/202?_
=< [




December 5, 2022

Macon County Mansger’s Office
5 W, Main St.

‘Franklin, NC 28734

Re: Macon County Planning Board vacancy / Letter of
Recommendation

secking represeatation from the Nantehala community, As
OfﬁcmoftheNamlm!aCommumityDcvalomthth,m
wish to recommend Lee Waiters of 868 Otter Creek Rd.
mehasbemamMofNMfmovwﬂm
and actively participates in our Clab. He is carrently an advisor
on our By-Law Committee and has provided much assistance in
the process of refining and revising the By-Laws. In open
mectings, Mr. Waltess provides welceme input and insight 1o
many of our discussions. He has a pasitive perspective oo
woﬂdngwﬁbmpsofpeople.withanabi}ﬁytodismtopics
from mmltiple perspectives to achieve a mutual consensus.
Concemning the characteristics needed to meet the qualifications
of a Planning Board member, in our opinion Mr, Walters meets
the description outlined in the General Duties, namety by ‘
determining objectives, prepazing and adopting pisns to meet the
objectives, develop end recommend policies, ordinances,
sdministrative procedures, and other means for canying ot
plans in & coordinated and efficient manner,

Int short, we fee] Mr. Walters® representation on the Macon
County Planning Board will benefit Nantshals snd Macon
Couanty.

Sincerely,

Tom President

Stove Blgos, VicoPres
g A
enb b




\r

[ Ptint Form

Application for Appointment to Macon County
Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees

The Macon County Board of Commissioners believes all citizens should have the opportunity to
Participate in governmental decisions. The Board wants to appoint qualified, knowledgeable and
dedicated people to serve on authorities, boards and committees. If you have an interest in being
considered for an appointment to any advertised vacancy, please thoroughly complete the form
below before the advertised deadline and choose from the following options.

Mail to: County Manager's Office

5 West Main Street or FAX to: 828-349-2400
Franklin, North Carolina 28734

Any Questions, please call the County Manager's Office at (828) 349-2025

Name of Authority, Board or Committee applying for: lPIanning board

Name [Matthew F Moyer

Addressja73 Beasley Mine Rd $Ci Franklin
el

f‘ Work 1828-3494222

——— e e . —— e ——— J—

___JN'C Zip k8734

Telephone: Home 1828-332-2446

Occupation IFueI gas piping and service

Business Address [291 Westgate plaza

Email Address matt.genealogybookstore@gmail.com

Briefly explain any anticipated conflict of interest you may have if appointed:

| currently work for an employer Toccoa Natural Gas where we somtimes do contract work fo Macon Co.

Educational Background

1995 frankIn High School grad, 1996 gradudated from collage in automotive and diesel mechnics. ! hold NC fuel
piping lic since 2001 NC Mechnical leve[ one inspections, Building inspections level one, | am also a NC cert firefighter.

Business and Civic Experiences/Skills:

See attached

Areas of Expetise and Interest/Skills.

Please see attached

List any Authorities, Boards, Commissions or Committees presently serving on:

None at this time,

SIGNAWM\\\% DATE: /1212022




Matthew F. Moyer
473 Beasley Mine Rd.
Franklin, NC 28734

Business and Civic Experiences/Skills:

For the last 24 years, I've been working in the LP and Natural Gas industries in Macon
County and northeast Georgia. I'm currently employed by the City of Toccoa, Northern
Dlvision of Toccoa Natural Gas Installation and service supervisor. In that capacity, I have
worked hand-in-hand with many Macon County staff, including Bobby Bishop in Building
Inspections, Tracy Tallent at the Board of Education, and the Mike Cope in the Maintenance
Department, I have a great working relationship with each of these departments.

I have been a firefighter with Cowee Volunteer Fire/Rescue since I joined the Junior
Auxiliary 30 years ago, including 3 years’ service on CVFR’s Board of Directors.

For &6 years, I served as JR Warden on the Vestry (board of directors) of All Saint's Episcopal
Church, maintaining the campus. T also served as Youth Leader there, increasing
involvement of church youth and building their spirituality. More recently, I've served on the
Board of Trustees of First United Methodist Church for 3 years, while also attending the
youth group, serving on mission trips, and participating in community outreach,

Areas of Expertise and Interest/Skills:

I have held a North Carolina Fuel Piping Contractor License since 2001 I have 3 years with
propane service and piping and delivery and I am the license holder for Toccoa Natural Gas
in North Carolina. I have 21 years’ experience installing fuel piping for new and existing
residential, commercial, and industrial customers. I am qualified and experienced to install,
tap into, and maintain underground natural gas lines. I also maintain and repair commercial
and residential natural gas appliances. I assist during Toccoa's annual NC Pipeline Safety
Inspections, which have passed each year. I also service and maintain pressure regulator
stations for the distribution areas In Rabun County, GA and Macon County, NC. T am
required to retest these annually according to the CFR 49 sections 192.801 and 195.501 for
operator qualifications as set forth by FERC and PHMSA. For the last 15 years, I have
conducted liaison meetings with public officials and emergency personnel. -







Renee K. Cooney, PLS

Owner Kirkland Land Surveying, PLLC & Legacy Properties by Renee, LLC

Education 1984-1988  Franklin High School Franklin, NC
1995-1997  Southwestern Community College, AA in General Education
2007 - 2009  Southwestern Community College, Dual AAS in Land
Surveying & Civil Engineering Technology

2012 Cumbie & Trull School of Real Estate

2020 Graduate Realtor Institute — Nationa! Association of Realtors
Professional 19992002 United Community Bank - Teller
Experience 2005-2011 Ron Kirkland Land Surveying, Drafting/PLS/Supervisor

2012-2013  REMAX Elite Realty - Real Estate Broker

20i13-2016  Unique Properties— Real Estate Broker

2016—2019  Southwestern Community College, Real Estate Instructor
2017-2017  REMAX Awenasa Realty - Real Estate Broker-in-Charge
2017 —present Owner/Broker in Chatge Legacy Properties by Renee, LLC
2020 —present Owner — Kirkland Land Surveying, PLLC

Professional 2010 North Carolina Surveyor L-4898
Licensure 2012 North Carolina Real Estate Broker Lic. 274120

Notary Public for North Carolina — expiration 02/03/2027
CFS (Certified Floodplain Surveyor) NC-277

Approved Instructor for North Carolina Real Estate Commission Pre-
Licensing and Posting Licensing

I'ypical Work Surveying includes USFS Boundary Retracement, Private Boundary,
Route Surveys for NCDOT & Duke Energy, USFS and US Fed.
Highway, Subdivisions, Dispute Resolution, Construction Stake Qut

Real Estate Brokerage includes: Representation of buyer and seller
clients in the purchase and sale of residential, land and commercial
properties.

Real Estate Instruction includes the presentation and education of real
estate brokerage to be eligible to sit for the NC licensure exam and to
fulfill post licensing education courses to maintain active licensure.




Professional

Organizations

Community
Activities

North Carolina Society of Surveyors (NCSS)

NC Realtors® Housing Foundation, Secretary, 2023

NC Realtors® Region 9 PAC Trustee, 2023

Carolina Smokies Assoc. of Realtors — Treasurer, 2023

Carolina Smokies Assoc. of Realtors — Education Committee Chair,
2017 — present

NC Realtors® Budget & Finance Committee

NC Realtors® Residential Forms Committee

National Association of Realtors® — 2012 — present including the
following designations: ABR® (Accredited Buyers Representative),
AHWD, (At Home With Diversity), GR], (Graduate Realtor Institute),
RENE (Real Estate Negotiation Expert), SRES® (Seniors Real Estate
Specialist) and WHS (Workforce Housing Specialist)

NC Realtors® - Region 9 Vice President 2019 — 2020, 2022
NC Realtors® Housing Foundation Director, 2021-2022
Carolina Smokies Assoc. of Realtors - President 2015, 2016

Rotary Club of Franklin — Satellite Club
NCSS
NC Realtors State Political Coordinator for Senator Kevin Corbin







[ [ A

" Pt Form

Application for Appointment to Macon County
Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees

The Macon County Board of Commissioneta believes al] citizens should have the opportunity to
Participate in governmental decisions. The Board wants to appoint qualified, knowledgesble and
dedicated people to serve on autharities, boards and committees. If you have an interest in being
congidered for an appointment to any advertised vacancy, please thoroughly complete the form
below before the advertised deadline and choase from the following aptions.

Mail to: County Manage:r's Office
5 West Main Street or FAX to; 828-349-2400
Franklin, North Carolina 28734

Any Questions, please call the County Manager's Office at (828) 349-2025

Name of Authority, Board o Commiltee applying for: Fconomlc Development Cotmmission

Name IBratt Rogers

Address|3ss Willowbrook Estates EC“'Y |Frankt|n INC Zip 123734

Telephone: Home |8284216965 ; Work |32335954n l

Occupation IOperatlons Management

Business Address (245 Industrial Park Road, Franklln, NC 28734

Email Address brogers@duotechservices.com ’

Briefly explain any anticipated conflict of interest you may have if appointed:
None

Educational Background
[Bachelor of Science in Operatlons Management; Minot Tn Economics: Minor In History (Cedarville Unlversity)

Business and Civic Experiences/Skills:
13 yaars' axparience as Vica President of Oparations at Duotach Sarvices, Inc. directly managing a team of 30+
individuals in the repair and manufacture of advanced defense electranic systems for 35+ countries worldwide.

Areas of Expertise and Interest/Skills:

HOperations management
-Businass development
FRecrulting employee;_forhlghl_yte;hnlcalgmploymgnt positions

List any Authoritles, Boards, Commissions or Committees presently setving on:

Southwestern Community College Board of Trustees
Macon County Economic Development Commission

SIGNATURE: M DATE: 19Janqary2023
L sl y \W
















Date: February 8, 2023
To: Macon County Board of Commissioners
Derek Roland, County Manager

From: Justin Setser, Land Use Administrator

Subject: Dave Jones Reappointment to Town of Franklin Planning Board

Dave Jones terim has expired. Mr. Jones would like to continue to serve as an ETJ
representative on the Town of Franklin Planning Board and Board of Adjustment for
Macon County. Mr. Jones would only like to serve a three-year term expiring on
February 6, 2026. This action was approved by the Town of Franklin’s Town Council at
their February 6, 2023 meeting.



